
City of Calistoga 

Staff Report 

 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM:  Richard Spitler, City Staff 

DATE: November 17, 2015 

SUBJECT: Provide Direction to Staff to Negotiate a Professional Services Agreement 
with Napa Public Access Cable Television (dba Napa Valley TV) to operate 
Calistoga’s Public/Community Access Channel 28 and If the City Council 
intends to implement the 1% PEG Support Fee  

 
APPROVAL FOR FORWARDING: 

 
       
Michael T. Kirn, Acting City Manager 

 
 
ISSUE:  Provide direction to staff to negotiate a professional services agreement with 1 
Napa Public Access Cable Television (dba Napa Valley TV) to operate Calistoga’s 2 
Public/ Community Access Channel 28 and if the City intends to implement the 1% PEG 3 
support fee. 4 
 5 
RECOMMENDATION:  By motion, direct to staff to negotiate a contract with Napa 6 
Valley TV to operate Calistoga’s Public/ Community Access Channel 28 and prepare a 7 
resolution for Council consideration to implement the 1% PEG support fee. 8 
 9 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  The City Council amended the City’s Cable 10 
System Franchise Regulation contained in Chapter 13.12 of the Municipal Code on 11 
October 20, 2015 (which becomes effective November 19, 2015). The amendments 12 
were made to reflect that Comcast ended the City’s franchise agreement on 13 
September 1st. The amendments also provided other changes as a result of the 14 
Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition Act (DIVCA). This included a 15 
requirement that an additional 1% of the gross fees received by Comcast be directed 16 
towards the cost of providing our public access channel (Channel 28), if desired by 17 
the City.  18 

 8 
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Presently the City operates Channel 28 as our public education governmental (PEG) 19 
channel. With adoption of these code amendments the City can require that 20 
Comcast collect an additional 1% of the gross fees from consumers to be directed 21 
towards the cost of providing our public access channel to pay for a third party to 22 
operate this station (the City cannot be the beneficiary of this 1% fee).  23 

All of the cities in Napa County, except Calistoga, use Napa Public Access Cable 24 
Television (dba Napa Valley TV) to administer PEG channel. Napa Valley TV is a 25 
non-profit company. Staff understands that all are satisfied with the service.  26 

James Raymond, Executive Director, of Napa Valley TV, has approached staff with 27 
an informal proposal to take over the operation of Channel 28, to include broadcast 28 
city council and planning commission meetings and to provide City and public 29 
access to the channel for public information dissemination. They would also provide 30 
technical assistance to the communications center. When Shawn O’Neal gave 31 
notice that he would no longer operate the communications center, the City Manager 32 
contracted with Napa Valley TV to operate the communications center at a rate of 33 
$35 per hour until a more formal arrangement could be found.  34 

The benefit to the City is that staff would not have to operate the channel but would 35 
have first right of access to continue to submit relevant community event information. 36 
Also as a designated PEG, the cost would not present a burden on the General 37 
Fund. Napa Valley TV would manage the communications center and provide 38 
technical assistance and recommendations to make sure the equipment operates 39 
properly. These later two functions would be in excess of the PEG fee, but well 40 
within the existing budget established for this service.  41 

As provided by the City code, Comcast has to be informed in writing that the City 42 
desires them to collect the 1% PEG fee from consumers. Once the letter is received 43 
they have 60 days to implement it which is around January 20, 2016. The timing of 44 
this letter would coincide with Napa Valley TV taking over the operation of Channel 45 
28. 46 

This staff report requests City Council direction regarding possible use of Napa 47 
Valley TV services and whether to implement the 1% PEG fee. If so directed, staff 48 
would come back to the Council with a professional services agreement and a 49 
resolution to implement the PEG fee.  50 

James Raymond, Executive Director, of Napa Valley TV will be available at the 51 
Council meeting to address questions or concerns.  52 

 53 

FISCAL IMPACT: This ordinance does not propose any changes to the amount of the 54 
franchise fee which is 5%, however, the proposed imposition of a 1% PEG fee on video 55 
providers will enable City to pay for assistance to run the public access TV station 56 
(approximately $16,000 per year). The existing cost of paying to operate the 57 
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communication center and technical assistance would be at $35 per hour which is less 58 
than what we budgeted for this fiscal year. 59 

It should be mentioned that the equipment in the communications center is aging, 60 
causing problems of sound distortion and poor visual quality, particularly the images on 61 
the projector screen. Staff has asked for a proposal from Napa Valley TV to address 62 
these issues. If the cost is reasonable, the City Manager will likely authorize the needed 63 
upgrades. These costs cannot be charged against the 1% PEG fees.  64 

 65 
ATTACHMENTS: 66 
 67 

1. Information on Napa Valley TV 68 
2. Chapter 13.12.020 of the Calistoga Municipal Code (PEG Access Fees) 69 











             
          ATTACHMENT 2 
 
 
13.12.020 State Video Franchise Fees and PEG Access Fees 
 
A. Any state franchise holder operating within the boundaries of the City shall pay a 

franchise fee to the City equal to five percent (5%) of the gross revenues, as defined in 
Public Utilities Code section 5860(d), of that state franchise holder. 

 
B. Any state franchise holder operating within the boundaries of the City shall pay a fee to 

the City as such time as directed by the City, or if directed by the City, to the City’s 
designated PEG provider, a PEG fee  equal to one percent (1%) of the gross revenues of 
that state franchise holder to support PEG access channel facilities.    

 
C. The franchise fee required pursuant to Section 13.12.020(A) and the PEG fee required 

pursuant to Section 13.12.020(B) shall each be paid to the City quarterly, in a manner 
consistent with California Public Utilities Code section 5860. The state franchise holder 
shall deliver to the City, by check or other means specified by the City, a payment for the 
franchise fee and a separate payment for the PEG fee not later than forty-five (45) days 
after the end of each calendar quarter. Each payment made shall be accompanied by a 
report, detailing how the payment was calculated, containing such information as the City 
Manager or his or her designee may require, consistent with DIVCA.   

 
D. The City shall provide written notification to State franchise holder(s) at such time that the 
 City wishes to implement the PEG support fee. State franchise holders so notified shall 
 commence payment of the fee to the City 60 days after City notification of PEG fee 
 implementation. 
 
 
 


	08 NapaValleyTVrevisedsr11-17-15 SR
	City of Calistoga
	Staff Report
	FROM:  Richard Spitler, City Staff
	ATTACHMENTS:


	08 Attach 1
	08 Napa Valley TV ATTACH 2-PEG provisions (2)

